AMENDED AND RESTATED BY-LAWS OF

NEW YORK CENTER FOR RESEARCH, ECONOMIC ADVANCEMENT, TECHNOLOGY, ENGINEERING AND SCIENCE CORPORATION (d/b/a "NY CREATES")

ARTICLE I Organization

- Section 1. <u>Type</u>. The New York Center for Research, Economic Advancement, Technology, Engineering and Science Corporation (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation"), is a charitable, Not-for-Profit Corporation.
- Section 2. <u>Principal Office</u>. The principal office of the Corporation in the State of New York shall be located at 257 Fuller Road, Albany, New York 12203.
- Section 3. Other Offices. The Corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the County of Albany, State of New York, as the Board of Directors may determine or as the affairs of the Corporation may require from time to time.

ARTICLE II Members

- Section 1. <u>Members</u>. The Corporation shall consist of two (2) Members: the SUNY Polytechnic Institute Foundation, Inc. (the "SUNY Poly Foundation") acting through its Board of Directors or the Executive Committee thereof and the Research Foundation for the State University of New York (the "Research Foundation"). Each Member shall remain a Member until the membership terminates by withdrawal or dissolution of the Corporation.
- Section 2. <u>Withdrawal</u>. Any Member may withdraw from the Corporation at any time by giving notice in writing to the other Member with a copy to the Chair of the Board of Directors, President, and/or Secretary of the Corporation. Any such Member withdrawal shall be effective upon receipt of notice by the other Member. The consent of the other Member of the Corporation to the Member withdrawal shall not be necessary. Directors of the Board appointed by the withdrawing Member shall be deemed to have resigned as of the effective date of the withdrawal notice, and the total number of Directors of the Board shall be reduced accordingly.
 - Section 3. Dues. No dues shall be required of any Member of the Corporation.
- Section 4. <u>Power and Duties</u>. The Members shall make possible the orderly and sound existence of the Corporation, and shall establish, and amend as necessary, these By-Laws of the Corporation. The Members shall have all the voting rights provided to members under the New York Not-for-Profit Corporation Law (the "NFPCL") and common law, including the appointment

of the Directors of the Corporation, who shall direct the management and operation of the Corporation.

ARTICLE III Meetings of the Members

Section 1. <u>Annual Meeting</u>. The Members of the Corporation shall meet at least annually in June of each year, or as soon thereafter as practicable, for the appointment of Directors and for the transaction of such other business as may properly come before the meeting. Membership meetings shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other place and by such other means as the Members may determine.

The President and/or Chief Financial Officer shall present at a meeting within six (6) months after the close of the Fiscal Year, or as soon as practicable thereafter, financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles that have been certified by a firm of independent public accountants selected by the Audit Committee showing in appropriate detail, at least the following:

- (a) The assets and liabilities, direct or contingent, of the Corporation;
- (b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities since the last report;
- (c) The revenue and/or receipts of the Corporation, restricted and unrestricted;
- (d) The expenses and/or disbursements of the Corporation for both general and restricted purposes; and
- (e) The number of members of the Corporation as of the date of the report, together with a statement of increase or decrease in such number and a statement of the place where the names and addresses of current members may be found.

Section 2. <u>Special Meetings</u>. Special meetings of the Members, except as otherwise provided by law, may be called to be held at the principal office of the Corporation or elsewhere at any time at the request in writing of either Member directed to the President or the Secretary of the Corporation. Special meetings shall also be called, with the consent of both Members, by the Chair of the Board of Directors, or by the President or Secretary of the Corporation, or at the request in writing of three (3) Directors to the President or Secretary of the Corporation. Any such request shall specify the date of the meeting, which shall not be less than two nor more than three months from the date of such written request, and shall detail the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting. Business transacted at a special meeting shall be confined to the subjects stated in the call and matters germane thereto.

Section 3. <u>Notice of Meetings</u>. Written notice of the place, date, and hour of each meeting of the Members shall be given, personally, by first class mail or by electronic means, to each Member by the President or Secretary of the Corporation, and, unless it is an annual meeting, indicate that it is being issued by, or at the direction of, the Member(s), Directors, the Chair of the

Board of Directors, or by the President or Secretary of the Corporation calling the special meeting. Notice shall be given not less than ten (10) nor more than fifty (50) days before the date of the meeting directed to the Member at its (physical or electronic) address as appears on the list of Members, or, if any Member shall have filed with the Secretary of the Corporation a written request that notices to it be mailed to some other address, then directed to it at such other address. If mailed, such notice is given when deposited in the United States mail, with postage thereon prepaid, directed to the member at the address the Member provides to the Corporation. If sent by fax or e-mail, such notice is given when directed to the Member's fax number or e-mail address the Member provides to the Corporation; provided, that notice shall not be deemed delivered if: (a) the Corporation is unable to deliver two (2) consecutive notices to the individual by e-mail or fax; or (b) the Corporation otherwise becomes aware that notice cannot be delivered to the individual by e-mail or fax.

Notice of any meeting of Members need not be given to any Member which submits a signed waiver of notice whether before or after the meeting. The attendance of any Member at a meeting without protesting the lack of notice prior to or at the start of the meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice by it. Waivers may be provided: (i) in writing signed by a Member or the Member's proxy either in hard copy or by affixing a signature by any reasonable means (e.g., fax signature); or (ii) by e-mail that includes information from which the recipient can reasonably determine that the transmission was authorized by the individual submitting the waiver.

- Section 4. <u>Procedure</u>. The order of business and all other matters of procedure at every meeting of Members will be determined by the Members.
- Section 5. <u>Quorum</u>. At every meeting of Members, except as otherwise provided by law or these By-Laws, both Members must be present for the transaction of any business. Each Member shall be represented by its President or his or her designee.
- Section 6. <u>Adjournments</u>. The Members shall have the power by a unanimous vote to adjourn the meeting from time to time. Subject to any notice required by law, at any adjourned meeting at which all Members are present, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted on the original date of the meeting.
- Section 7. <u>Voting</u>. Except as otherwise provided in the Certificate of Incorporation or these By-Laws, each Member shall be entitled to one vote at every meeting of the Members. All questions that shall come before any meeting of Members shall be decided by unanimous vote, except the appointment of Directors by the SUNY Poly Foundation or the Research Foundation as provided in Article IV, Section 2 of these By-Laws.
- Section 8. <u>Meetings by Teleconference</u>. Members may participate in a meeting of the Members by means of a teleconference or similar communications equipment allowing all persons participating in the meeting to hear each other at the same time. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a meeting.

Section 9. <u>Account and Minutes</u>. Account and minutes shall be taken at every proceeding of Members and a copy shall be kept at the office of the Corporation for inspection by the Members.

Section 10. <u>Action Without a Meeting</u>. Whenever Members are required or permitted to take any action by vote, such action may be taken without a meeting, on written consent, setting forth the action so taken, signed by both Members. Consents may be provided: (i) in a writing signed by a duly authorized representative of the Member either in hard copy or by affixing a signature by any reasonable means (e.g., fax signature); or (ii) by e-mail that includes information from which the recipient can reasonably determine that the transmission was authorized by a duly authorized representative of the Member.

ARTICLE IV Directors

Section 1. <u>Number</u>. The Board of Directors shall be composed of eleven (11) natural persons appointed by the Members as set forth in Section 2 of this Article IV. At all times, at least three (3) Directors shall be "independent" directors as defined under the NFPCL. As used in these By-Laws, "entire Board of Directors" means eleven (11).

Section 2. <u>Composition of the Board</u>.

- (a) The Board of Directors shall be comprised as follows:
 - Four (4) Directors appointed by the SUNY Poly Foundation, of which one (1) shall be appointed upon the recommendation of the New York State Urban Development Corporation, doing business as Empire State Development ("ESD") and one (1) shall be appointed upon the recommendation of the State University of New York ("SUNY");
 - Four (4) Directors appointed by the Research Foundation, of which one (1) shall be appointed upon the recommendation of ESD and one (1) shall be appointed upon the recommendation of SUNY; and
 - Three (3) Directors from the public at large who shall be elected by unanimous consent of the Members and with the consent of ESD ("At-Large Directors").

From the three (3) At-Large Directors, the Members shall designate, by unanimous consent, one (1) Director to serve as Chair and one (1) Director to serve as Vice Chair, each to serve for a term of one year or until his/her successor has been designated. The Chair of the Board of Directors shall preside at all meetings of the Board. In case of a vacancy in the office of Chair or the Chair's inability to act or absence from the State of New York, the Vice Chair may exercise powers and duties of the Chair until the Chair resumes his/her duties or until a successor is designated for the unexpired term of his/her predecessor. In the case of a vacancy in the office of Vice Chair or the Vice Chair's inability to preside at a meeting of the Board in the absence of the Chair, the Board may elect among the Directors present at any such meeting, a Director to preside over the meeting.

- (b) Upon appointment to the Board and annually thereafter, each Director shall execute an Acknowledgement of Fiduciary Duty in a form prescribed by the Compliance Officer and shall disclose in writing any conflict of interest as defined in the Corporation's then current Conflict of Interest Policy. Each Director shall participate in a program of Conflicts of Interest training as soon as practicable after appointment to the Board and periodically thereafter, generally at intervals no greater than three (3) years from appointment.
- (c) The President and Chief Executive Officer of ESD, or his/her designee, and the Chancellor of SUNY, or his/her designee, shall serve as non-voting, non-fiduciary, advisory representatives to the Board of Directors. The ESD and SUNY representatives each shall receive notice of all meetings of the Board (and any Committee thereof), and shall receive copies of all materials submitted to the Board (and any Committee thereof) at the same time any such notice and/or materials are given to the Directors (or any Committee thereof), and shall have the right to attend and participate in all meetings of the Board of Directors, including any Committee thereof. Neither the ESD nor the SUNY advisory representative shall count toward a quorum nor toward the number of the entire Board of Directors.
- (d) The Members' chief executive officers, or their designees, are designated as the Member Representatives. Each Member Representative shall receive copies of all materials submitted to the Board (and any Committee thereof) at the same time any such notice and/or materials are given to the Directors (or any Committee thereof), and shall have the right to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and any Committee thereof.
- Section 3. <u>Powers and Duties</u>. The Board of Directors shall direct the management of the operations, property, affairs and concerns of the Corporation consistent with the provisions of these By-Laws, as written or amended, all policies and procedures adopted by the Board, and the Certificate of Incorporation.
 - Section 4. Qualifications. Directors must be at least eighteen (18) years of age.
- Section 5. <u>Term.</u> Directors shall serve for a term of one (1) year or until their successor shall be appointed in accordance with Article IV of these By-Laws.

Section 6. Resignation.

- (a) Any Director of the Corporation may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the Member on whose behalf such Director serves, with a copy to the President of the Corporation and to the Chair of the Board or the Secretary of the Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified in the resignation or, if no time is specified, then upon receipt by the Member. Unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- (b) A Director shall notify the Secretary of any anticipated absence from a meeting of the Board as soon as practicable but in any event at least one (1) business day in advance of such meeting. The Secretary shall provide such notices to the Chair. By an affirmative vote of the

Board of Directors, a Director may be deemed to have resigned and may be replaced in accordance with these By-Laws if the Director is absent for three (3) consecutive Board meetings without notice to the Secretary.

- Section 7. <u>Removal</u>. A Director appointed by the Research Foundation or by the SUNY Poly Foundation may be removed during his or her term (a) with or without cause by the Member that elected such Director; or (b) for cause by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Directors at a duly convened meeting. An At-Large Director may be removed (a) with or without cause by a unanimous vote of both Members; or (b) for cause by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Directors at a duly convened meeting.
- Section 8. <u>Vacancies</u>. Whenever a vacancy shall occur in the Board of Directors, other than by expiration of term, it shall be filled by the selection of a new Director in the same manner and for the unexpired term of his/her predecessor in office.
- Section 9. <u>Compensation</u>. No Director as such shall receive any compensation, either by way of salary, fees for attendance at meetings, or otherwise. Directors may be reimbursed for reasonable expenses incurred by them in the performance of their duties as Directors.

Section 10. Meetings of Directors.

- (a) Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least quarterly and at such times and at such places as may be determined by action of the Board of Directors, or in the absence of such action, by the Chair of the Board of Directors, or by the President or Secretary of the Corporation, or at the request in writing of three (3) Directors directed to the President or Secretary of the Corporation. The first meeting on or after July 1 of each year shall be the annual meeting.
- (b) Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chair of the Board of Directors, or by the President or Secretary of the Corporation, or at the request in writing of three (3) Directors directed to the President or Secretary of the Corporation. Such request shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board may select any place within the State, as the place for holding any special meeting of the Board called by them. Business transacted at a special meeting shall be confined to the subject(s) stated in the call and matters germane thereto.
 - (c) Each Director shall have one (1) vote. No Director may vote by proxy.
- (d) Except as provided in Section 13(c) of this Article IV and Section 108 of Article 7 of the New York Public Officers Law, every duly convened meeting of the Corporation's Board of Directors at which a quorum is present shall be open to the general public. All reasonable efforts shall be made to ensure that Board meetings are held in facilities that permit barrier-free physical access to the physically handicapped, as defined in subdivision 5 of Section 50 of the Public Buildings Law and can adequately accommodate members of the public who wish to attend such meetings.

(e) Directors must participate in meetings of the Board in person or via videoconference. Directors participating via videoconference shall be counted toward the quorum and may vote.

Section 11. Notice of Meetings of the Board of Directors.

- (a) Notice of the time and place of each meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given by the Chair of the Board, or the Secretary, or by the three (3) Directors of the Board calling the same, to each Director on the Board, copies of such notice to each Member of the Corporation and to the ESD and SUNY representatives, not less than seven (7) business days before the meeting by mailing the notice, postage prepaid, addressed to each Director on the Board at the address on file with the Secretary, and to the two (2) Members and the ESD and SUNY representatives at their respective principal offices, or not less than one (1) business day before the meeting by delivering the notice to each Director on the Board, and to the two (2) Members and the ESD and SUNY representatives, personally or electronically.
- (b) Notice of a meeting of the Board of Directors or a committee thereof need not be given to any Director who submits a signed waiver of notice, whether before or after the meeting. The attendance of any Director at a meeting of the Board or a committee thereof without protesting prior thereto or at its commencement the lack of notice to him or her shall constitute a waiver of notice by the Director. The meeting shall be duly called and held if notice is given to, or is waived by, all absent Directors. Waivers may be provided: (i) in a writing signed by the Director either in hard copy or by affixing a signature by any reasonable means (e.g., fax signature); or (ii) by email that includes information from which the recipient can reasonably determine that the transmission was authorized by the individual submitting the waiver.
- (c) Public notice of the date, time and place of a Board meeting shall be given to the news media and shall be conspicuously posted on the Corporation's website, along with the meeting's agenda, at least seventy-two (72) hours before such meeting to the extent practicable. To the extent practicable, materials submitted to the Directors for consideration at a meeting shall be made available to the public upon request at the meeting. In addition, to the extent practicable, such materials will be made available in advance of the meeting by means of posting to the Corporation's website.

Section 12. Quorum and Voting.

- (a) At all meetings of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided by law, the Certificate of Incorporation or these By-Laws, a quorum shall be required for the transaction of business and shall consist of a majority of Directors then in office but in no event fewer than four (4) Directors. A majority of the Directors present at any meeting, although less than a quorum, may adjourn the same from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting.
- (b) The affirmative vote of a majority of Directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is present shall decide any question that may come before the meeting, except as set forth below.

- (c) The following action must be approved first by two-thirds vote of the entire Board of Directors and then submitted to the voting Members for approval.
- (i) the purchase of real property that will constitute all, or substantially all, of the assets of the Corporation or its current affiliates Fuller Road Management Corporation ("FRMC") and Fort Schuyler Management Corporation ("FSMC" and collectively with "FRMC", the "NY CREATES Affiliates") once purchased.
- (d) The following items must be approved first by majority vote of its Board of Directors at a meeting at which a quorum is present and then submitted to the voting Members for approval:
 - (i) Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation or any affiliate, including, but not limited to, the NY CREATES Affiliates or future affiliates;
 - (ii) Approval of a plan of merger or consolidation of the Corporation or any affiliate, including, but not limited to, the NY CREATES Affiliates;
 - (iii) Approval of a plan of dissolution of the Corporation or any affiliate, including, but not limited to, the NY CREATES Affiliates; provided, however, if the number of directors actually holding office as such at the time of the vote to adopt the plan is less than the number required to constitute a quorum of directors, then the remaining directors must approve unanimously;
 - (iv) Approval of a recommendation for the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation or any affiliate, including, but not limited to, the NY CREATES Affiliates; provided, however, if all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation or any affiliate, including, but not limited to, the NY CREATES Affiliates consist of real property, approval of such sale by two-thirds vote of the entire Board of Directors is additionally required;
 - (v) Admission of additional members into the Corporation or any affiliate, including, but not limited to, NY CREATES Affiliates; and
 - (vi) Any change to the mission or purpose of the Corporation or any affiliate, including, but not limited to, NY CREATES Affiliates.

Section 13. Procedure.

- (a) The order of business and all other matters of procedures at every meeting of Directors may be determined by the presiding officer.
- (b) Minutes shall be taken at all meetings of the Board and copies thereof shall be distributed to all Directors and posted to the website of the Corporation.

- (c) Executive Session. Upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors present at a duly convened meeting, the Directors may conduct an Executive Session, which shall be closed to the public, for the reasons enumerated in Section 105 of Article 7 of the Public Officers Law. Attendance at any such Executive Session shall be limited to the Directors and the Member Representatives, Officers, employees, and other persons relevant to the matters under consideration as determined by the Board.
- Section 14. <u>Informing the Directors of Corporate Activity</u>. Reports of all material Corporate activities, as determined by the President, including program development, applications for fiscal support and funds received in support of the purposes of the Corporation, will be presented to the Board of Directors for information either at each regularly scheduled meeting of the Board or by mail. A copy of such information shall also be provided to each Member of the Corporation.
- Section 15. <u>Records</u>. The Corporation shall maintain a fair record of all the transactions of the Corporation, including financial statements prepared in accordance with the provisions of the NFPCL. The audited annual financial report shall become a part of the Corporation's permanent records and a copy of the report shall be entered in the minutes of the proceedings of the meeting of the Board of Directors at which such report is presented to the Board and shall be provided to each Member of the Corporation. A report of the financial statements shall be presented to the members of the Finance Committee not less than quarterly.
- Section 16. <u>Investment Matters</u>. The Corporation shall comply with the New York Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act ("NYPMIFA") as applicable.

ARTICLE V Committees of the Board

Section 1. Committees of the Board.

- (a) The Board of Directors shall establish an Audit Committee and such other committees as the Board may deem appropriate. Each committee shall consist of at least three (3) Directors including at least one (1) Director nominated by each Member. Directors serving on such committees shall be appointed by resolution adopted by a majority of the entire Board of Directors, which resolution may designate one of the appointees as Chair for each committee. Each committee member shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors for a term of one (1) year and until his or her successor is elected.
- (b) Committees shall be subject at all times to the direction of the Board of Directors. Committees shall be governed by a committee charter which shall be adopted by the Board of Directors and shall detail the committee roles and responsibilities. Except as otherwise provided in these By-Laws, no committee shall have any authority without specific authorization by the Board of Directors and no committee shall have authority as to the following matters:
 - (i) The submission to members of any action requiring Members' approval under the law;

- (ii) The filling of any vacancies on the Board or any committee;
- (iii) The fixing of compensation of the Directors for serving on the Board or on any committee;
- (iv) The amendment or repeal of the By-Laws, or the adoption of new By-Laws;
- (v) The amendment or repeal of any resolution of the Board which, by its terms, shall not be so amendable or repealable;
- (vi) The election or removal of Officers and Directors;
- (vii) The approval of a merger or plan of dissolution;
- (viii) The adoption of a resolution recommending to the Members action on the sale, lease, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation; and
- (ix) The approval of amendments to the certificate of incorporation.
- (c) Committees shall keep regular minutes of their proceedings and shall make the same available to the Board of Directors upon request.
- (d) Unless otherwise provided by resolution of the Board of Directors, a majority of all the members of a committee shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business and the vote of a majority of all of the committee members shall be the act of the committee.
- Section 2. <u>Audit Committee</u>. The Audit Committee shall be a committee of the Board and shall consist of at least three (3) members. All members shall be "Independent Directors" as defined under the NFPCL, who shall have the knowledge and experience appropriate and sufficient to competently assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its responsibility with respect to overseeing: (1) the Corporation's material legal, audit, and compliance matters; (2) its system of controls, reporting, and accounting systems, including the Corporation's audited financial reports; (3) the internal audit department, including the retention and management of an external auditor as may be needed; and (4) the implementation of the policies and procedures required by these By-Laws, including, without limitation, policies governing conflicts of interest and related party transactions. The Board of Directors shall adopt an Audit Committee Charter to govern the operations of the Audit Committee.
- Section 3. <u>Meetings</u>. Meetings of committees shall be held at such time and place as shall be fixed by the President of the Corporation, the Chair of the Board of Directors, the chair of the committee or by vote of a quorum of the members of the committee. Notice of such meetings may be delivered personally, by mail or electronically at least one day prior to the meeting and shall state the purposes, time and place of the meeting.

ARTICLE VI Officers

Section 1. <u>Officers</u>. The Officers of the Corporation shall be the President, Chief Financial Officer, Compliance Officer, General Counsel, Secretary and such additional Officers as the Board may deem desirable, all of whom shall be appointed by the Board and shall serve at its pleasure, subject to any contractual rights. Such additional Officers shall exercise such powers and perform such duties as usually pertain to their respective offices or as are properly delegated or assigned to them from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. The President. The President shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation and shall be responsible for the general supervision and control of the affairs of the Corporation and shall see to it that all policies, resolutions and other directives of the Board of Directors are carried out. The President, in such capacity, shall be authorized to enter into and execute in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation any agreement, obligation, contract, document or instrument the President deems reasonable or necessary in carrying out the business and affairs of the Corporation and for which execution has been generally or specifically authorized by the Board of Directors. The President shall make recommendations to the Board for the programs and activities of the Corporation. The President shall make reports as the Board may request. The President shall perform other duties for the Board as the Board may direct. The President shall have such powers and perform such other duties as the Board may direct as are reasonably incident to such office. The President will ensure that Corporation activities comply with all legal and regulatory mandates, will consult with legal counsel as needed, and direct all Corporation Officers and employees in carrying out said obligations.

Section 3. The Secretary. The Secretary shall have charge of the books, documents, and papers as the President may determine and shall have the custody of the corporate seal. The Secretary shall issue notices of all meetings of the Members of the Corporation and of Directors of the Board and committees thereof where notices of such meetings are required by law or these By-Laws. The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors, except as otherwise directed by the Board, and shall keep the minutes thereof and shall fix the Corporate seal to and sign such instruments as require the seal or signature and, shall perform such other duties as usually pertain to the office or as are properly required of the Secretary by the Board of Directors.

Section 4. The Chief Financial Officer. Subject to the authority of the President, the Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") shall serve as the chief financial officer of the Corporation and shall be directly responsible for the management and oversight of the Corporation's daily financial operations, including accounting, budgeting, financial reporting, investing, debt issuance and contract compliance. The CFO shall be the financial advisor to the Corporation, the Board of Directors and its committees, except as otherwise directed by the Board or President. The CFO shall provide financial advice and opinions, prepare financial statements and shall represent the Board of Directors and the Corporation in all financial matters.

Section 5. <u>General Counsel</u>. The General Counsel shall serve as the Corporation's Chief Legal Officer and legal advisor to the Corporation, the Board of Directors and its committees, except as otherwise directed by the Board or the President. The General Counsel shall provide

legal advice and opinions, prepare legal documents and shall represent the Board of Directors and the Corporation in all legal matters.

- Section 6. <u>Compliance Officer</u>. Under the direction of the President and the Board of Directors, the Compliance Officer shall be responsible for preparing and enforcing the Corporation's internal policies and procedures designed to prevent and/or detect violations of applicable law, regulations, rules and ethical standards by the Corporation's employees, agents and/or others. The Compliance Officer shall conduct periodic risk assessments and develop response plans to address identified risks and conduct training programs for the Directors, Officers and employees of the Corporation to ensure compliance with the policies and procedures required by these By-Laws. The Compliance Officer shall report annually to the Board on his/her activities and assessments.
- Section 7. <u>Board Meetings</u>. The Officers shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors unless otherwise directed by the Chair of the Board or by the Board; provided, however, that the absence of any Officer at any meeting of the Board shall not affect the validity of any action taken by the Board in accordance with these By-Laws.
- Section 8. <u>Temporary Transfer of Powers and Duties</u>. In case of the absence or illness of any Officer of the Corporation, or for any other reason that the Board of Directors may deem sufficient, the Board of Directors may delegate and assign, for the time being, the powers and duties of any Officer to any other Officer or to any Director.
- Section 9. <u>Compensation</u>. Compensation of all Officers shall be fixed by the Board of Directors upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee.
- Section 10. Officers Holding Two or More Offices. No Officer holding more than one office shall execute or verify any instrument in more than one capacity if such instrument is required by law or otherwise to be executed or verified by two or more Officers.
- Section 11. <u>Removal</u>. Any Officer appointed by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board of Directors whenever in its judgment such removal is deemed to be in the best interests of the Corporation, but such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the Officer so removed.
- Section 12. <u>Officer Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any office, because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VIISurety Bonds, Insurance and Indemnification

Section 1. <u>Surety Bonds</u>. The Board of Directors may require all Officers and employees of the Corporation who handle Corporate funds to furnish adequate Surety Bonds approved by the Board of Directors as to form and coverage. The cost of all Surety Bonds so required shall be paid by the Corporation.

Section 2. Indemnification.

- (a) <u>Authorized Indemnification</u>. Unless clearly prohibited by law or Section 2(b) of this Article VII, the Corporation shall indemnify any person (each such person, an "Indemnified Person") made or threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that they, their testator or intestate, whether before or after adoption of this Section is or was a Director, Officer or employee of the Corporation. The indemnification shall be against all judgment, fines, penalties, amounts paid in settlement (provided the Corporation consents to such settlement, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld) and reasonable expenses, including reasonable attorney's fees and reasonable costs of investigations, actually and necessarily incurred by the Indemnified Person in connection with the defense of such action, suit or proceeding, or in connection with any appeal therein. Such right of indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which such director or Officer may be entitled. Any Director, Officer or employee seeking to become an Indemnified Person in accordance with this paragraph (a) of Section 2, Article VII must obtain the approval of the Board of Directors pursuant to paragraph (d) of this Section 2, Article VII.
- (b) <u>Prohibited Indemnification</u>. The Corporation shall not indemnify any person if a judgment or other final adjudication adverse to the Indemnified Person, or to the person whose actions are the basis for the action or proceeding, or the Board of Directors in good faith determines, that such person's acts were committed in bad faith or were the result of active and deliberate dishonesty which were material to the cause of action so adjudicated or that he/she personally gained in fact a financial profit or other advantage to which he or she was not legally entitled.
- (c) Advancement of Expenses. The Corporation shall, on request of any Indemnified Person who is or may be entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as determined by the Board of Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) and (d) of this Section 2, Article VII, pay or promptly reimburse the Indemnified Person's reasonably incurred expenses in connection with a threatened or actual action or proceeding prior to its final disposition. However, no such advancement of expenses shall be made unless the Indemnified Person makes a binding, written commitment to repay the Corporation, with interest for any amount advanced for which it is ultimately determined that he or she is not entitled to be indemnified under the law or paragraph (b) of this Section 2, Article VII. An Indemnified Person shall cooperate in good faith with any request by the Corporation that common legal counsel be used by the parties to such action or proceeding who are similarly situated unless it would be inappropriate to do so because of actual or potential conflicts between the interests of the parties.
- (d) <u>Determination of Indemnification for Directors</u>, <u>Officers</u>, <u>and Employees</u>. Indemnification mandated by final order of a court of competent jurisdiction will be paid. After termination or disposition of any actual or threatened action or proceeding against an Indemnified Person, if indemnification has not been ordered by a court, the Board of Directors shall, upon written request of a Director, Officer or employee seeking to become an Indemnified Person, determine whether and to what extent indemnification is permitted pursuant to these By-Laws. Before indemnification can occur, the Board of Directors must explicitly find that such indemnification will not violate the provisions of paragraph (b) of Section 2 of this Article VII.

No Director with a personal interest in the outcome, or who is a party to such actual or threatened action or proceeding concerning which indemnification is sought, shall participate in this determination. If a quorum of disinterested Directors is not obtainable the Board of Directors shall act only after receiving the opinion in writing of independent legal counsel that indemnification is proper in the circumstances under then applicable law and these By-Laws.

- (e) <u>Binding Effect</u>. Any person entitled to indemnification under these By-Laws has a legally enforceable right to indemnification which cannot be abridged by amendment of these By-Laws with respect to any event, action or omission occurring prior to the date of such amendment.
- (f) <u>Nonexclusive Rights</u>. The provisions of this Section 2 of Article VII shall not limit or exclude any other rights to which any person may be entitled under law or contract.

Section 3. Insurance.

- (a) The Corporation shall purchase such insurance as the Directors of the Corporation determine to be necessary or appropriate for the protection of the Corporation, its assets and its interests or as may be required by law. Subject to subparagraph (b) of this Article VII, Section 3, such insurance shall include General Liability Insurance.
- (b) The Corporation is not required to, but it may, purchase Directors' and Officers' liability insurance if authorized and approved by the Board of Directors. To the extent permitted by law, such insurance may insure the Corporation for any obligation it incurs as a result of this Article VII or by operation of law and it may insure directly the Directors, Officers and employees of the Corporation for liabilities against which they are entitled or permitted to be indemnified by the Corporation.

ARTICLE VIII Finances

- Section 1. <u>Fiscal Year</u>. The Corporation's fiscal year shall be from July 1 through June 30.
- Section 2. <u>Funds</u>. The Corporation's funds shall be deposited in such bank or banks, in such types of accounts and subject to such deposit and withdrawal procedures as recommended by the CFO and approved by the President or the Board of Directors.
- Section 3. <u>Records and Accounts</u>. The Corporation's financial records and accounts shall be maintained consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. All financial records and accounts of the Corporation shall be open to inspection by any Director or by either Member at any reasonable time.
- Section 4. <u>Annual Plan</u>. The President, with the recommendation of the CFO, shall present an annual plan, which shall set forth all anticipated revenues and expenditures, to the Board of Directors for its approval at the regularly scheduled Board meeting each year immediately preceding the commencement of the new fiscal year, or as soon as practicable thereafter. The plan

shall include: (a) the approved expenditure levels, including approved changes, and estimated income and expenditures for the current fiscal year; (b) the actual income and expenditures for the prior fiscal year; and (c) the estimated income and expenditures for the forthcoming fiscal year.

Section 5. <u>Audit</u>. The Corporation's financial statements shall be audited annually by a certified public accounting firm approved by the Board of Directors. The Corporation shall also conduct all annual reviews necessary for compliance with all applicable regulations pertaining to not-for-profit and exempt corporations including IRS Form 990. The Board of Directors shall review and approve both the annual audit and the IRS Form 990 prior to submission to the appropriate agency and/or government entity. A copy of such reports shall be provided to the Directors and the Members prior to the meeting at which these will be reviewed.

ARTICLE IX Policies and Procedures

- Section 1. <u>Policies and Procedures</u>. The Board of Directors is authorized and directed to adopt, implement, and enforce policies and procedures for the proper and ethical conduct of the affairs of the Corporation consistent with the Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation, these By-Laws, and all applicable law. At a minimum, these shall include the following:
 - (a) Code of Conduct for Directors, Officers, and Employees;
 - (b) Policy regarding Conflicts of Interest;
 - (c) Fraud and Whistleblower Policy;
 - (d) Policy and Procedure for the Procurement and Administration of Contracts;
 - (e) Policy regarding the Acquisition and Disposition of Real Estate;
- (f) Records Access Policy, in conformance with Article 6 of the Public Officers Law ("FOIL"), as the same may be amended from time to time; and
 - (g) Policy Regarding Debt, Risk Assessment, and Risk Mitigation.
- Section 2. <u>Annual Review</u>. At least annually, the Compliance Officer shall prepare and present to the Board a report on the implementation of the Corporation's policies and procedures during the preceding year, including any recommendations with respect thereto. Such report shall include any recommendations regarding such policies and procedures or the adoption of any new policy or procedure in accordance with then current best practices.

ARTICLE X Miscellaneous

Section 1. <u>Form of Seal</u>. The seal of the Corporation shall be in such form as the Directors shall determine.

Section 2. <u>Books and Records</u>. There shall be kept at the office of the Corporation: (1) correct and complete books and records of accounts; (2) minutes of the proceedings of the Members, the Board of Directors, and any committee of the Board; (3) a current list of the Directors and Officers of the Corporation; (4) a list of all Members or classes of membership, including name and address; (5) a copy of these By-Laws; (6) a copy of the Corporation's application for recognition of exemption with the Internal Revenue Service; and (7) copies of the past three (3) years of information returns and Form 990-Ts (if any) filed with the Internal Revenue Service.

ARTICLE XI Amendment

These By-Laws and the Certificate of Incorporation may be added to, amended, repealed, or replaced only by the unanimous agreement of the Members of the Corporation.

- Bylaws adopted by the Initial Directors on December 13, 2019, approved and accepted by the Members on December 17, 2019, and approved and accepted by the Appointed Directors at the organizational meeting of NY CREATES held on December 18, 2019.
- Bylaws amended and restated on December 3, 2021 by unanimous written consent of the Members dated December 3, 2021.